January 9, 2004

Mr Robert J. Pellat

Commission Secretary

BC Utilities Commission

900 Howe Street

Sixth Floor Box 250

Vancouver, BC V6z 2N3

NCOC Comments on the Vancouver Island Call For Tenders

Dear Sir;

On September 8, 2003, the British Columbia Utilities Commission rendered a decision in the matter of the Vancouver Island Generation Project (VIGP).

The decision states a number of conclusions that led to the finding by the BCUC that VIEC had not established that VIGP was the most cost effective means to reliably meet Vancouver Island power needs. 

Some of these conclusions were

· that BC Hydro had overestimated the requirement for additional capacity,

· that BC Hydro needed to change their load forecasting methodology in terms of content and transparency.

· that BC Hydro’s costs for VIGP were understated, in particular in the cost of capital and the ongoing cost of natural gas supply and transportation 

· that the utilization rate for VIGP was overstated

· that the NPV analysis needed to be simplified and made transparent

· that the assessment models used by BC Hydro be made public

I do not see much evidence in the material available to non-bidders that the above conclusions have been taken into consideration by BC Hydro in the design and execution of the VICFT.

In it’s VIGP decision, the Commission Panel encouraged BC Hydro to proceed with a Call For Tenders, but was careful to avoid ordering BC Hydro to issue the call.

The BCUC should not be sanctioning the CFT proposed by BC Hydro at this time as that would compromise the independence of the Commission at the eventual hearing on the EPA associated with this call. Just as the panel stressed the importance to BC Hydro of a fair and open call and its establishment of a level playing field, this same thought holds true for the BCUC. . The BCUC should not put its imprimatur on the process at all. It is up to BC Hydro to find the least-cost power, and then submit the EPA to the BCUC as outlined in Policy Action # 9 of the province’s Energy Policy for regulatory approval. The BCUC process would then determine if in fact the proposed EPA represented the least-cost power in a public hearing. BC Hydro could submit evidence with respect to the CFT to support its position that the EPA represented least-cost power, and the BCUC and the public would have the opportunity to examine and challenge the evidence provided. To do otherwise would compromise the hearing process.

If however the BCUC is simply being asked to comment on the process to provide a degree of comfort to BC Hydro that it is on the right track, there are a number of concerns that I would like to draw to your attention.

1. I am concerned with the selection of the Independent Reviewer. It strikes me that choosing the firm of Price Waterhouse Cooper as the independent reviewer is tainted by the fact that the CEO of BC Hydro, Bob Elton was a long time employee and ultimately a partner in that firm prior to joining BC Hydro. This choice shows the disregard BC Hydro has for public perception in its decision making. To establish the appearance of impartiality and to avoid the possibility of conflict of interest, PWC should have excluded from consideration. There are many other firms who could have served equally well who do not have that historical relationship with the key decision maker at BC Hydro.

2. It should be noted that BC Hydro stated they would begin efforts on the 230kV transmission line and look for short-term solutions to bridge the gap between 2007 and 2009 if VIGP was denied a CPCN ( B. Elton - Transcript  Vol. 13 pg. 2917-18). 

So far there has been no indication from BC Hydro that they have initiated this project, despite the fact that the CPCN was denied. Given that the requirement is for short-term capacity, why has the CFT not been structured to meet this goal? What BC Hydro is proposing appears to be a Call for Tenders for an amount far in excess of the identified requirement to meet the identified capacity shortfall, and one not designed to meet short-term capacity concerns.

3. The proposed 10 to 25 year contracts take this CFT well beyond the current VI capacity shortfall requirements, and could potentially tie BC Hydro into paying a premium for VI generated power that will be too expensive and potentially unnecessary once the 230kV cable provides access to the cheaper alternatives on the mainland. By restricting bidders to on-island generation, BC Hydro has established that whatever their ultimate choice is, it is not least-cost on a long-term basis. For this reason, if on-island generation is a mandatory criterion for this call, then the call should be explicitly for short-term capacity. A further call for a long-term solution would then be appropriate for the period following the removal of the transmission bottleneck with the mainland created by BC Hydro’s decommissioning of the HVDC cables prior to the completion of their replacement.

4. The “transmission deferral credit” outlined in the BC Hydro documentation can only be considered a reward for producing power not required on Vancouver Island, and runs counter to both the suggestion that the CFT address short term capacity requirements on Vancouver Island, and the opinion expressed by Mr. Mansour and the Commission Panel that Vancouver Island’s reliability would appear to be best served by the completion of the 230kV cable as expeditiously as possible. Projects, including load shedding, load shifting, conservation, and the use of time-of-use rates, that meet the VI capacity shortfall requirements with a reasonable contingency amount for the period between the decommissioning of the HVDC cables and the commissioning of the 230kV cable should be the only ones considered for this CFT and resultant EPA. 

5. Even by casting VIGP in it’s most favourable light during the VIGP hearings, with high utilization, low natural gas prices, low or non-existent gas transportation costs, no GHG offset cost, and cheap capital, the cost of a MWh of power from VIGP was at best 1.4 cents higher that BC Hydro’s opportunity cost for Green and Customer Generated power in their recent calls (6.9 cents vs 5.5 cents). With the added factor of profit for an IPP, how can VIGP be realistically considered a competitive option? What has changed that would make this electricity lower in cost from an IPP than the original VIEC project that was denied a CPCN as not being the most cost-effective means to reliably meet Vancouver Island power needs?  

6. The Commission Panel noted in its Decision (pg 77) that least cost differs from most cost effective, and should be taken to only include cost or price considerations. That being the case, how will the BCUC determine least-cost, especially if they are only asked to approve an EPA for the portfolio selected by BC Hydro, who have stated that they will not necessarily choose the lowest bid?

7.  Would the BCUC consider restricting the EPA to Vancouver Island’s actual need (150Mw ceiling) and look only at the cost of delivering that amount for the limited period of the capacity shortfall? Would they then compare that to the pricing for the other options, including load shifting, load shedding, load curtailment, and conservation measures such as time-of-use and stepped rates?

8. The Commission Panel in its decision recognized that, …“the 230kV option may be the reliability reinforcement if on-island generation becomes prohibitively expensive.” Who defines “prohibitively expensive”? With reference to Energy Policy #9, would the BCUC consider turning down BC Hydro’s selection from the CFT process if it deems their choice to be too expensive?. 

In conclusion, the Province’s Energy Policy Document outlines a policy action with respect to BC Hydro’s purchase of electricity. Policy Action # 9 states, “ Electricity distributors will acquire new supply on a least-cost basis, with regulatory oversight by the BC Utilities Commission.”  Ultimately, it will be the task of the BCUC to evaluate the results of the CFT to ensure this dictum is adhered to. Not by evaluating the process, but rather by determining whether the actual electricity being purchased is the least-cost power available at that time to reliably meet the needs of Vancouver Island. That is the appropriate time for the BCUC and the public to be involved. Until the EPA is brought to the BCUC for a public hearing, BC Hydro should continue to apply its efforts to finding the best solution for the ratepayers and residents of Vancouver Island. 

Please consider these comments, and should you have any questions, you may contact the Nanaimo Citizens Organizing Committee at the address below, or at jasparr@shaw.ca . Thank You.

Nanaimo Citizens Organizing Committee

c/o 195 Commercial Street

Nanaimo, BC  V9R 5G5

Jim Parr

cc 
BCUC Intervenors


VICFT


NCOC Steering Committee

